
MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING 

      OF THE TOWNSHIP OF JACKSON 

ZONING BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT 

OCTOBER 4, 2006 

 

The October 4, 2006 Regular Meeting of the Jackson Township Board of Adjustment was called to order by Chairman 

Sgro at 7:08 p.m. with a salute to the flag by all present.  Attorney Sean Gertner read the Open Public Meetings Act 

Statement. 

 

ROLL CALL:  Barry Calogero   Kevin DiGesu, Alt. #1    

   Stephen Costanzo   Glen Bouthillette, Alt. #2 – arrived at 7:40 p.m. 

Peter Maher   Vincent Sgro, Chairman    

          

ABSENT:  Jeffrey Bowen 

Diana LaBianca, Secretary 

Joy Ann Harmer, Vice Chair 

 

ALSO PRESENT: Richard Megill, Director of Planning and Zoning 

   Sean Gertner, Board Attorney 

   Wayne McVicar, Board Engineer 

   Mark Muraczewski, Planner 

   Jackie Wahler, Court Reporter 

 

APPROVAL OF RESOLUTIONS 

 

Recording Secretary Janice Kisty announced the following resolutions and named those eligible to vote: 

 

2006-80 – Isaac Fried – Block 106.02, Lot 4.07 

Motion to approve this resolution by MAHER/Calogero.  YES:  Maher, Calogero, Sgro. 

 

2006-81 – Losecar – Block 59.01, Lot 83.01 

2006-82 – Calise – Block 75.07, Lot 21 

2006-83 – Nerwinski – Block 65.03, Lot 1 

2006-84 – Cassidy – Block 118.02, Lot 28 

2006-85 – Pedro – Block 135.15, Lot 16 

2006-86 – Akinwumi – Block 132.02, Lot 14 

2006-87 – Elessaswi – Block 135.01, Lot 1.14 

2006-88 – Mackerer – Block 78.23, Lot 4 

2006-89 – Prokopiuk – Block 94.01, Lot 32 

2006-90 – Ursua – Block 135.05, Lot 1 
Motion to approve the foregoing resolutions by DiGESU/Maher.  YES:  Maher, Calogero, DiGesu, Sgro. 

 

PAYMENT OF VOUCHER 

 

Motion to approve the voucher for Recording Secretary for tonight’s meeting by MAHER/Calogero.  YES:  Maher, 

Calogero, Costanzo, DiGesu, Sgro. 

 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

 

Motion to approve the minutes from September 6, 2006 by CALOGERO/DiGesu.  YES:  Maher, Calogero, DiGesu, 

Sgro. 

 

ANNOUNCEMENTS 

 

Mr. Megill welcomed Stephen Costanzo to the Board.  He will fulfill the unexpired term of board member John Straka.  

Mr. Megill also noted a Board member who was appointed in July only attended two meetings since then; he called 

today stating he would be here and he is not.  Mr. Sgro took note of that and said he would contact the Mayor. 

 

MATTERS FOR DISCUSSION 

 

The matters concerning McCrystal Reporting Contract for 2006 and pending invoice #42668 from the law firm King, 

Kitrick & Jackson, LLC were handled when the contract was obtained and the invoice agreed upon for payment because 

the attorney was invited to the July 5 meeting by the present Zoning Board attorney, Sean Gertner. 

 

Ms. Wahler swore the professionals, who stated their names and affiliations for the public. 

 

 

APPLICATIONS 

 

1. APPLICANT: GINA J. SERRANO-FRANS  (VARIANCE # 2601) 

 BLOCK: 111   LOT: 109   ZONE: R-3 

 LOCATION: 585 FRANK APPLEGATE ROAD 

 

 

 

APPLICANT IS SEEKING A VARIANCE TO REPLACE AN EXISTING FENCE WITH A 6 FT. SOLID FENCE IN 

THE FRONT YARD OF THIS CORNER LOT. 

 

Mr.Sgro addressed the applicant, stating her property taxes were not current.  He explained if the Board hears this 

application, any approval is subject to payment of taxes.  Gina Serrano–Frans sworn.  She stated the fence was there 

previously and she did not know it needed a variance, and she wants to replace it.  Mr. McVicar visited the site and asked 

if it would be in the same location, and was told yes.  He had no objection to its placement. 



Page  2  - Zoning Board Minutes of October 4, 2006 (cont’d) 

 

PUBLIC SESSION OPENED 

 

Margaret Bollanti, 548 Frank Applegate Road, sworn.  She had no objection to the fence replacement, but she did not 

want it in the front yard.  She did not understand the terminology, “Front Yard.”  Mr. McVicar explained Jackson Mills 

Road is considered a front yard and explained there are two front yards and two side yards.  The original variance for this 

property said there would be no fence for the house, but the property owners put one up any way.  Mr. Gertner advised 

Ms. Serrano-Frans to check on her taxes, and she agreed.   

 

Motion to close the public session and approve this variance by CALOGERO/DiGesu.  YES:  Maher, Calogero, 

Costanzo, DiGesu, Sgro. 

 

 

2. APPLICANT: KIM NUNEZ  (VARIANCE 2457-1) 

 BLOCK: 129.02  LOT: 19   ZONE: R-9 

 LOCATION: 9A BIRCH DRIVE 

 

APPLICANT IS SEEKING A VARIANCE TO CONSTRUCT A 6 FT. WHITE VINYL FENCE 5 FT. FROM 

PROPERTY LINE ALONG LARSEN ROAD, A FRONT YARD ON THIS CORNER LOT, WHERE THE ZONING 

BOARD PREVIOUSLY APPROVED A 6 FT. SOLID FENCE 10 FT. IN FROM PROPERTY LINE PER 

RESOLUTION 2005-061. 

 

Mr. & Mrs. Nunez sworn.  There is an existing chain link fence along Larsen Road and they want to install a 6’ vinyl 

fence instead.  They were told by the previous board to construct the fence 10’ from the property line.  They provided 

pictures, and Mr. Nunez stated the location of the fence 10’ in from the property line takes away 800 square feet of his 

yard.  He stated people have taken things from his property, others stop there, pull over and ask for directions.  Mr. Mc 

Vicar asked if the five feet they are requesting is from the property line or the sidewalk, and they said both, they are the 

same. Mr. Megill asked where the driveway is for adjoining lot 7, as there is a possible safety issue.  Mr. Calogero said 

there are woods behind there.   

 

PUBLIC SESSION OPENED; No one came forward. 

Motion to approve by CALOGERO/DiGesu.  YES:  Maher, Calogero, Costanzo, DiGesu, Sgro. 

 

 

3. APPLICANT: JAMES & FATIMA ROGERS (VARIANCE #2596) 

 BLOCK: 7   LOT: 33.19   ZONE: R-5 

 LOCATION: 1 COUNTRY ROAD 

 

APPLICANT IS SEEKING A VARIANCE TO CONSTRUCT A 6 FT. SOLID FENCE AND 25 FT. X 21 FT. X 40 FT. 

IN GROUND POOL WITH EQUIPMENT IN FRONT YARD OF THIS CORNER LOT.   

 

Fatima Rogers sworn.  She needs a variance for the fence, pool, and equipment.  Mr. McVicar said he had no issue with 

the fence as it is not in the sight triangle, but he questioned the location of the pool.  Ms. Rogers said she would have to 

take down 30 trees, the well is in the way, and there would be no room for a playground.  Mr. McVicar thought the pool 

could be placed off the deck and she thought that would be a safety issue for the children.  Mr. McVicar stated he is 

looking at it from a land use issue.  She said she would have to take down two large pine trees, and there are no trees on 

the side and the pool code fence is already in place for that.  Mr. Calogero said it is fairly wooded in back, and he feels 

the proposed location is well- suited.  He questioned why the shed is not on the plan.  She said she has a permit and it is 

permitted in that area.  Mr. Megill said shed would need a variance.  She said shed was placed after they moved in and 

she obtained a permit.  It is 12’ x 16’, had inspections and tax assessment done.  MR. Megill said he would defer to the 

building department. 

 

PUBLIC SESSION OPENED; No one came forward. 

Motion to close the public session and approve the variances by CALOGERO/Costanzo.  YES:  Maher, Calogero, 

Costanzo, DiGesu, Sgro. 

 

 

4. APPLICANT: RICHARD HOPKINS (VARIANCE # 2597) 

 BLOCK: 85   LOT: 13.07   ZONE: R-3 

 LOCATION: 66 LEESVILLE ROAD 

 

APPLICANT IS SEEKING A VARIANCE TO CONSTRUCT A 10 FT. X 26 FT. HORSE BARN IN FRONT YARD 

WHICH IS NOT PERMITTED.  

 

Richard Hopkins sworn.  He stated he thought he was going by the book.  He obtained a permit to take down trees in 

order to keep horses on his property and did not realize the barn was in the wrong spot.  He provided pictures.  Mr. 

Calogero visited the site and saw the location, stating it does not match on his diagram.  Mr. Hopkins said he originally 

put the barn on his conservation easement.  The Amish people are coming to move it once they find out where they can 

place it.  He asked if he can fence the conservation area for the horses.  Calogero said he has a very large front yard and 

had no problem.  Mr. Megill asked how it was advertised to public, to ensure it was noticed properly.  Mr. McVicar 

asked if he intends to move the shed to the location on the plan was told yes.  When Mr. Hopkins provided his public 

notice, Mr. Gertner said the notice indicates he is seeking a variance for a barn in the front yard, which is not permitted.  

He said it is a sufficient notice, but the board will have to decide the location and setbacks.   

 

PUBLIC SESSION OPENED 
 

Gary Poppe, representing 46 Leesville Road, sworn.  He received notice of this hearing and has no objection to the horse 

barn.  He said Mr. Hopkins has a gorgeous house, and has no objection to the barn in the front yard.  He asked this board 

a few years ago when this property obtained approvals as an undersized lot for a fence for his property, which is 

commercial.  Mr. Hopkins’ property wraps around his property.  They had no problem with the lot, they simply asked for 

a fence at the time, and he said all their work is done off site.  Instead of a fence, the Board approved a 50’ buffer of trees  



Page  3  - Zoning Board Minutes of October 4, 2006 (cont’d) 

 

which are all dead now.  The barn is to be placed in the wooded area.  If this board would have required the fence, this 

situation would not be an issue now.  He wants to protect his interest as a business owner. Mr. Sgro said this is a new 

Board and asked Mr. Hopkins what he can do.  Mr. Hopkins said plans to put up a fence but is currently out of money, 

and thought he would put up trees.  Mr. Gertner said there is a conservation easement on the plan and asked if it is a 

condition of the prior resolution.  Mr. Poppe said yes, but it is now a row of dead trees.  Mr. Gertner said they don’t have 

the resolution from the subdivision, but this could possibly be worked out. Mr. Megill said a variance is needed to put a 

fence in the conservation easement.  He said he will check with the Township Clerk’s office if the developer is still 

bonded, and if so, they are still liable.  Mr. Gertner said this is a fair resolution, and explained to Poppe and Hopkins.  

Poppe said that would satisfy both; he is not here to stop Mr. Hopkins’ plans.  His property has been zoned commercial 

for many years.  Mr. Gertner asked if the barn would be in the conservation easement.  Mr. Hopkins said no.  Mr. 

McVicar noted the applicant wants to fence in the area around the barn and that may be in the easement.  The board can 

decide the barn but not the fence. Mr.  Calogero asked if it is necessary to have the fence.  Mr. McVicar said horse would 

not have room to run around without fencing in the conservation easement.  Mr. Calogero asked if the fence is required 

to enclose the horse.  Mr. Megill said yes, and he needs to know the location of the barn.  Mr. Gertner suggested 

adjourning the matter and the applicant should come back with the exact location of the barn and fence.  McVicar said he 

needs setbacks.  Mr. DiGesu asked if the location on the plan is the proposed site and was told yes.  When he asked if 

they need the variance for the fence, Mr. Megill said not if it is outside the easement and not more than 4’ high.  Mr. 

DiGesu said if it is moved either way, he can be told to take it down.   

 

Motion to close the public session and approve the variance, with the location as shown on the map and keeping 

the fence outside the conservation easement, and Arcon Developers made to replace the 50’ buffer if they remain 

on bond by DiGESU/Costanzo.  YES:  Maher, Calogero, Costanzo, DiGesu, Sgro. 

 

 

5. APPLICANT: SUZANNE FLAVANEY (VARIANCE # 2534-1) 

 BLOCK: 132  LOT: 13.24   ZONE: R-5 

 LOCATION: 2 OPAL COURT 

 

APPLICANT IS SEEKING AN AMENDED VARIANCE TO CONSTRUCT (5) 24’ X 24’ X 6’ COLUMNS, 5 FT. 

JERITH FENCE ACROSS FRONT 0F PROPERTY AND 5 FT. CHAIN LINK FENCE DOWN SIDES OF 

PROPERTY ALL IN FRONT YARD ON THIS CORNER LOT, WHERE THE ZONING BOARD PREVIOUSLY 

APPROVED A 6 FT. SOLID FENCE PER RESOLUTION 2006-25 

 

Mr. & Mrs. Flavaney sworn.  Suzanne Flavaney said they received a variance for a 6’ solid fence in the exact location, 

but when they applied for their permit, they changed the fence from a 6’ solid to 5’ aluminum and chain link fence, 

which was approved.  They constructed columns as well, but were unaware they needed a variance for them.  Mr. 

McVicar visited the site and stated whether the fence is solid or open, it does not interfere with the sight triangle.  He had 

no objection to the request and said it looks very nice. 

 

PUBLIC SESSION OPENED 

 

Carl Hagberg, Amethyst Way, sworn.  He has researched this situation.  He has two young kids, and had photos to show 

that the sight line for his kids is a problem.  He said he asked someone to look into this.  One document says columns 

were taken down, and in fact, they weren’t.  Mr. Sgro asked if there were safety issues.  Mr. McVicar said it is safe.  Mr. 

Sgro asked Mr. Hagberg to direct his questions to Mr. McVicar.  They marked two photos O-1 and O-2 that showed the 

columns weren’t removed.  Mr. Sgro said the safety issue is primary.  Mr. McVicar said the fence appears to be off the 

curb line 15’, and 8’ off the sidewalk, and in his opinion there is enough room to back a car out [of Mr. Hagberg’s 

driveway] and stop before going across the sidewalk. Mr. McVicar said the Board already approved the solid fence, and 

this is even better [because it is not solid].  Mr. Hagberg said the fence is 6’ in from the curb, and Mr. McVicar 

disagreed.  Mr. Hagberg then said it is 6’ in from the sidewalk.  Mr. Hagberg said a second driveway is proposed, and the 

applicant said no.  Mr. Hagberg said he wants the fence clear of the shade tree and utility easement.  Mr. McVicar said it 

is.  Mr. DiGesu asked the applicant if they knew they needed a variance for the columns, and Ms. Flavaney said no, she 

just marked the location of the fence on the survey and did not know she needed to note where the columns were going.   

 

Motion to close the public session and approve the amended variance by DiGESU/Maher.  YES:  Maher, Costanzo, 

DiGesu, Bouthillette, Sgro.  NO:  Calogero. 

 

Recess at 8:00 p.m.  Reconvene at 8:10 p.m. 

 

 

6.  APPLICANT: PLATINUM DEVELOPERS @ CLEARSTREAM LLC (VARIANCE #2584) 

 BLOCK: 72.01    LOT: 21  ZONE: R-2 

 LOCATION: CLEARSTREAM ROAD 

 

APPLICANT IS SEEKING A VARIANCE TO CONSTRUCT A SINGLE FAMILY DWELLING IN THE R-2 ZONE 

WITH VARIANCES REQUESTED FOR LOT WIDTH -200’ REQUIRED AND 125’ PROVIDED AND SIDE YARD 

SETBACK 20 FT. REQUIRED AND 14.67 FT. PROVIDED ON ONE SIDE.(CARRIED FROM THE SEPTEMBER 

6, 2006 MEETING) 

 

The attorney for the applicant stated previously, two variances were requested, and they now request one for the existing 

condition of the width of the lot, which is 125’ wide and needs 200’.  They reduced the size of the  home and set it back 

further, at 187’.  As far as purchasing additional land to make the lot conforming, there is a residential lot to the north, 

similar in size and not suitable for purchase.  They sent certified letters on September 21, 2006 to adjoining property 

owners on the South side and to the owners of the large parcel and have received no response to date.  Mr. Stevens of 

PDS, previously sworn, has additional exhibits.  Mr. Calogero said he visited the site, and asked if the new house would 

be parallel to the house next door?   Mr. Stevens answered the proposed home would still be forward of the house next 

door.   

 

 

 



Page  4 - Zoning Board Minutes of October 4, 2006 (cont’d) 

 

PUBLIC SESSION OPENED 

 

Sandy August, 313 Clearstream Road, sworn.  She said most lots in the area are 125’ wide.  She is the neighbor to right, 

and has a driveway down the property line.  She asked if they are proposing a side entry garage.  She is concerned the 

driveway is going to be too close to the property line and said it is a safety issue.  The lot slopes down to the street, and it 

is hard to see down Clearstream, causing a safety issue.  She asked if they could flip the garage to the other side of the 

house.  The attorney asked the applicant’s engineer if there were any engineering concerns, and Mr. Stevens said there 

were no engineering or topographical issues, and flipping the house could save more trees.  She asked how far the 

driveway would be off the property line, and  Stevens said the proposed house is 30’ from her side property line, and the 

other side would have the garages.  Mr. Megill said they need 30’ for the side entry garage to work and it would have to 

be cleared.  Mr. McVicar suggested additional clearance at the entry to the driveway from the street for sight distance. 

Mr. Gertner asked if the applicant agrees with the Board Engineer’s letter and was told yes, subject to flipping the 

direction of the house. 

 

Motion to close the public session and approve the variance by CALOGERO/Maher.  YES:  Maher, Calogero, 

DiGesu, Bouthillette, Sgro. 

 

 

7.  APPLICANT: ROBERT MASSEY (VARIANCE # 2582) 

 BLOCK: 118.06  LOT: 13   ZONE: R-9/R-1 

 LOCATION: ELM STREET 

 

APPLICANT IS SEEKING A VARIANCE TO CONSTRUCT A SINGLE FAMILY DWELLING WHERE ONE 

ACRE IS REQUIRED AND IS PROVIDING .35 OF AN ACRE, 20 FT. SIDE YARD SETBACK REQUIRED AND 

PROPOSING 6 FT.; ALSO DETACHED GARAGE 20 FT. SIDE YARD REQUIRED AND PROVIDING 11 ½ FT. 

(CARRIED FROM THE SEPTEMBER 6
, 
2006 MEETING) 

 

Robert Massey, 2003 North Road, Point Pleasant, and Albert Birch, 186 South Hope Chapel Road, Jackson,  sworn.  Mr. 

Massey said the dwelling is a former garage converted to a single family dwelling, it is not a good dwelling, and he 

wants to replace it using the existing foundation, septic and garage.  He proposes a change from rental to private 

ownership, and stated this would be an improvement to the neighborhood.  Located in the Lake Enno area, it is the least 

desirable home in the area.  He has a tenant, and wants to rebuild and sell.  Houses on both side are new, this is an 

eyesore.  Mr. Sgro asked if there is adjoining vacant property to buy and was told no, all adjoining properties contain 

homes and are under the requirements for lot size.  Mr. Megill asked the Board to consider the variance for building on 

the footprint and not the foundation so it would not create a situation where another variance would be required.  The 

applicant was questioned if there are two dwellings on the property and was told no.  Mr. Calogero asked for clarification 

of the address, whether it is 4 Elm Street, or 2 ½ Elm street.  Mr. Massey said it used to be 4 Elm, and is now 2 ½ , and 

Mr. Megill said the block and lot number is correct.  Mr. Calogero asked if the property was subdivided and was told 

yes, before he owned it.  Mr. McVicar said the variance goes with the block and lot, not the house number.  4 Elm Street 

contains a new home.  2 ½ Elm is the garage that is this block and lot.  Mr. DiGesu asked if they will use existing septic.  

Mr. Massey said it is sufficient, about 4 years old.  Mr. DiGesu asked how many bedrooms the home contains now, and 

Mr. Massey said a three-bedroom septic was constructed, and they plan to construct a three bedroom home.  Mr. DiGesu 

asked the square footage of the new house, and Mr. Birch said 898 square feet per floor.  Mr. McVicar said if the 

foundation must be replaced, they should relocate the house to conform to the setbacks.  Mr. Birch, the architect  for this 

project, investigated the possibility of using the existing foundation and said what’s there is 8” block wall in good shape.  

He spoke to the Building Department and feels the slab and foundation is ok.  Mr. Gertner asked for his credentials.  Mr. 

Birch is a registered architect in New Jersey, Maryland and Washington, and has testified before several Boards.  His 

business is located on South Hope Chapel Road.  His credentials were accepted.  Mr. Megill asked if Mr. Kierce from 

the Building Department wanted an engineer’s certification that the foundation is ok, and Mr. Birch said he would 

provide that if he needs to.  Mr. Calogero asked if the property on the left, 4 Elm, is sold and occupied, and Mr. Massey 

said yes.  Mr. Calogero asked if that owner was notified the new home would be 6’ from the property line and Mr. 

Massey replied yes.  Mr. Calogero asked if the property owner is happy a new house is proposed here.  Mr. Sgro 

questioned the notification procedure and Recording Secretary Janice Kisty clarified.  Mr. Calogero said his concern is 

the new home is proposed 6’ from the property line.  Mr. Birch entered photos marked A-1, A-2 and A-3, new house at  

2 Elm Street next door, 2 is the existing property, and 3 is 4 Elm Street.  The Board asked if they could move the house, 

and the applicant stated it would be a major expense to move everything.  It is not practical to rip the house down and 

rebuild everything.  Mr. Maher thought it is more than a detriment.  Massey said well and septic are 4 years new.  Mr. 

DiGesu said if rebuilding is not practical, what would they do if the structural engineer requires that, and Mr. Massey 

said he would make sure it can be put where it is before any demolition takes place.  Mr. Bouthillette said the structural 

engineer’s certification could be a condition of the resolution.  Mr. Calogero asked about  fire issues with that setback, 

and where the air conditioning unit would go.  Mr. McVicar said he was unaware of any fire issues, and asked about the 

small structure 1 ½’  from the property line.  Mr. Massey said it would be removed and the air conditioning unit would 

be in the rear.  Mr. McVicar said the ideal situation would be  to conform to the zone as much as possible.  If the 

foundation is not a factor, the house could be relocated within the setbacks but would require an adjustment for the 

septic.   

 

Mr. Megill stated 5’1” between dwellings for fire ratings does not require fire separation.  The house would be 6’ from 

the fence.  Mr. DiGesu asked about the driveway.  Mr. Massey said there is no driveway; it is all grass and his plan 

shows the blacktop as an error.  A-4 was marked as a diagram of the proposed house.  Mr. Calogero said he understands 

the economic impact, but asked if the Board wants to allow that or require the house to be placed in the proper setbacks.  

Mr. Bouthillette asked if this is a hardship, and Mr. Gertner said economics do not constitute hardship.  Mr. McVicar 

asked if this application is approved, would they adhere to his review letter and was told yes.  Mr. Sgro asked if this is 

approved, what should the setbacks be.  Mr. McVicar said the western wall should not block the garage wall.  Mr. Megill 

said the original zone required 10’.  Mr. McVicar said the house is 30’ wide, if it is shifted 10’, the setback would be 16’.  

Mr. McVicar said the 10’setback would be acceptable, requiring the applicant to only move it 4 feet.  The detached 

garage must be 10’ from the house and that could not be achieved.  Mr. Maher asked if it is attached by a breezeway, 

would it need 10’, and was told no, it would have to be fire rated.  Mr. Bouthillette asked if he is selling the house and 

was told yes.  He said this is not an economic hardship.  Mr. Gertner said they have to decide if this is beneficial to the 

town, not an economic hardship.   

 



Page  5 - Zoning Board Minutes of October 4, 2006 (cont’d) 

 

PUBLIC SESSION OPENED, No one came forward, PUBLIC SESSION CLOSED. 

 

Motion to approve by MAHER with the condition the house be placed 10’ from the property line, subject to the 

Engineer’s review letter of August 28, 2006, granting a variance to permit the existing garage to remain, and if a 

breezeway is constructed, that it be fire rated.  Seconded by Bouthillette, conditioned the house must be 10’ from 

the side property line.  YES:  Maher, Calogero, Costanzo, DiGesu, Bouthillette, Sgro.     

 

 

8. FARADAY ASSOCIATES LLC-EAGLE RIDGE GOLF COURSE (MAJOR SUB # 611) 

 BLOCK: 56.02   LOT: 1    ZONE: I 

 LOCATION: WHITESVILLE AND FARADAY 

 

APPLICANT IS SEEKING A MAJOR SUBDIVISION FOR CONSOLIDATION, WHICH RECEIVED APPROVAL 

UNDER MAJOR SUB. 583, RESOLUTION 2003-16 ON 1/15/03 BUT APPROVAL HAS EXPIRED AND HAS 

SUBMITTED A NEW APPLICATION.(CARRIED FROM SEPT. 6, 2006) 

 

Michael York, Esq., of Novins, York, & Pentony, represented this applicant, stating the Board granted subdivision 

approval in July 2001, and is asking for re approval of a minor subdivision since the streets were now vacated and the 

subdivision is now decreased to two lots.  Mr. McVicar said this was a prior approval, and because they don’t front on a 

public street or right of way, this is a major subdivision but they wanted it to be considered a minor subdivision because 

it is two lots.  Mr. York agreed to the R& V letter of 9/1/06.  Mr. McVicar asked if there are any changes was told no.  

Mr.DiGesu asked if this is for a golf course and was told it is for a 9-hole extension in Jackson for the Lakewood Golf 

course.  The Vice-President for the golf course stated they have a lease agreement with Lakewood, and now have a 

CAFRA permit.  They needed all those outside agency approvals, and that is why they couldn’t file the map in a timely 

fashion.  Mr. DiGesu asked where the utilities are and was told the east side of the railroad and is under CAFRA.  The  

utilities come through Toms River, and taxes are paid in Jackson. 

 

PUBLIC SESSION OPENED; No one came forward; PUBLIC SESSION CLOSED 

 

Motion to approve by DiGESU/Calogero.  YES;  Maher, Calogero, Costanzo, DiGesu, Bouthillette, Sgro. 

 

 

9. APPLICANT: MARK PROPERTIES (MINOR SUBDIVISION # 1357) 

 BLOCK: 119.08  LOT: 1.01   ZONE: HC 

 LOCATION: RIDGEDALE AVENUE 

 

APPLICANT IS SEEKING A MINOR SUBDIVISION FOR (2) LOTS WHICH RECEIVED PRIOR USE VARIANCE 

APPROVAL #2411 PER RESOLUTION # 2005-017. 

 

Removed from the agenda as they did not notice. 

 

 

10. APPLICANT: THE WOMANS MASSAGE CENTER (INTERPRETATION /USE VARIANCE AND 

SIGN #2599) 

 BLOCK: 120.01  LOT: 70   ZONE: R-3 

 LOCATION: 975 BENNETTS MILLS ROAD 

  

APPLICANT IS SEEKING AN INTERPRETATION/USE VARIANCE AND SIGN TO USE THIS UNIT FOR 

MASSAGE THERAPY, WHICH IS NOT LISTED AS A PERMITTED USE ANYWHERE IN JACKSON. THE 

DENTAL OFFICE BUILDING RECEIVED ORIGINAL APPROVAL FROM THE ZONING BOARD ON 9/3/03 PER 

RESOLUTION #2003-85. 

 

Dennis Galvin, attorney for the applicant, entered exhibits A-1 to A-4.  Mr. Megill clarified the above statement that this 

use is permitted in the Highway Commercial zone, not as it says ‘anywhere in Jackson.’  Mr. Galvin addressed the board, 

stating they are here for two requests – one for an interpretation of the previous resolution granting a use variance for a 

dental office and “professional office space”, and the other issue is for a use variance for the massage center if a use 

variance is required.  Mr. Galvin noted only six board members are present this evening and he wished to reserve the 

right to wait for any hearing for a use variance so enough members would be eligible to vote. He referred to resolution 

#2003-85 that granted a use variance for a dental office on the first floor, and a professional office on second floor.  He 

feels this is a professional office because massage therapy is a medical use.  If the Board finds this is a medical use,  it 

would be permitted according to the approved resolution.  He said they are requesting a sign, Exhibit A-3, which is an 

addition of a small sign below what is already there, not a separate sign.  Mr. Sgro said there are only six members 

tonight.  Mr. Galvin said he is asking for the interpretation only tonight.  If granted, the use variance would not be 

required.  Mr. Megill said one member tonight is ill and may not be able to attend next month’s regular meeting.  Mr. 

Gertner explained to the Board what Mr. Galvin was asking. 

   

Mr. Galvin introduced Jill Marie Feehan, his client, who was sworn.  She resides at  36 Orlean Drive, Jackson.  She is a 

certified Massage Therapist with over 2,000 hours of education in this field.  She is certified in pain management, and 

she explained Shiatsu therapy.  Reflexology deals with pressure on hands and feet, releases tension, and promotes 

healing.  Cranial sacral therapy is related to the nervous system.  Prenatal massage relates to pregnancy, and massage 

therapy is used for sports-related injuries.  Myofacial release relates to connective tissue in the body.  Integrated massage 

is a use of all different types of massage; she would perform whatever is appropriate to relieve various symptoms.  

Doctors refer patients to her.  Handicapped and elderly patients would be treated in their personal homes, not here 

because of the accessibility of the second floor.  The office is ADA compliant because it is less than 3,000 sq. ft.  

Prenatal massage was described, all descriptions were done from a medical standpoint and the medical helpfulness that 

massage provides.  She described pain massage.  Galvin said this is a medical field.  No men could be treated here, just 

women.  She would employ one receptionist and one or two massage therapists.  This facility suits her needs. 

 

There will be a suite for pregnant women, a reception room, two treatment rooms and rest rooms.  Hours of operation 

would be 9-9 Monday through Friday and 9-6 Saturday and Sunday.  The community benefits from a facility like this  



Page  6- Zoning Board Minutes of October 4, 2006 (cont’d) 

 

and she would like to have an outreach program to educate people on the various therapies, demonstrations, and visits to 

nursing homes if allowed.  She is all-natural health care.  Mr. Sgro asked why men could not be treated and Ms. Feehan 

answered massage for men is not allowed in Jackson.   

 

Teresa D’Antonio sworn, 24 Leone Boulevard, Jackson.  She owns the building and has the dental practice downstairs.  

Her business would work harmoniously with Jill’s business, and she thinks the building turned out beautifully.  At the 

time of approval, the Board did not want a residential use upstairs, they wanted a professional office.  She leased the 

space to Jill, thought it would be appropriate as she seems like a physical therapist. 

 

Mr. DiGesu asked the hours for the dental office and was told 10-7 Monday and Wednesday, and Thursday 9-5.  Mr. 

Galvin said the Hassler Funeral Home is across the street.  Mr. Sgro said the Board already granted a professional use.  

Mr. Bouthillette asked is there would be any retail sales and was told no.  Mr. Galvin agreed to have that stipulated in the 

resolution.  Mr. Maher asked about parking and Mr. McVicar it suffices. 

   

Allison Coffin, Professional Planner, sworn and credentials accepted.  She feels this qualifies under the interpretation 

because the 970 sq. ft. office was approved for a professional use and the use variance was granted. She said massage 

therapy is a recognized professional use.  Ms. Feehan is a qualified professional and this is considered alternative 

medicine.  Medical benefits for massage therapy are proven.  In her opinion , a massage therapy office is a professional 

office and the use variance was already granted. 

 

Mr. Muraczewski said the previous board granted the use variance, and Mr. Galvin said they are asking for interpretation 

of that resolution of approval.  Mr. Gertner said there is a difference between what is listed in the ordinance, they are all 

licensed.  The Board can look beyond the specific.  The Planner said massage therapists are not required to be licensed 

by the State, but they can be.  Mr. Calogero asked if they accept insurance, and Ms. Feehan said yes.  Mr. Costanzo 

asked about the staff and was told they have the same credentials as her.  Mr. Galvin said they would accept that as part 

of the resolution.  Mr. DiGesu noted this is in a residential area and  asked if there are houses next door, and was told 

yes.   

 

PUBLIC SESSION OPENED; No one came forward   

 

Mr. Calogero and Mr. Maher stated they feel under the interpretation this meets the requirement of a professional office 

and the Board agreed.  Mr. Galvin said they also need the 2’ x 5’ sign under the wording on the existing sign.  Mr. 

Costanzo asked if the setbacks of the sign would be addressed with site plan. 

Mr. Gertner said they need a motion if the Board agrees this use is a professional use according to the previously granted 

variance. 

 

The sign is not an issue for Mr. Megill.  The applicant did not know the total square footage of the sign, but it must meet 

the township ordinance.  Mr. Megill said if the Board approved the applicant’s interpretation of the approved resolution, 

nothing else in the review letter from the Board Planner and Engineer is needed.  The interpretation is subject to the 

conditions stated, per Mr. Gertner.  Mr. Galvin said the applicant agreed to reduce its hours of operation to 9-8 Monday 

through Friday and 9-5 on weekends to satisfy the neighbors. 

 

Motion to agree the interpretation of professional office as granted in resolution 2003-85 shall permit this 

massage therapy office by CALOGERO/Bouthillette.  YES:  Maher, Calogero, Costanzo, DiGesu, Bouthillette, Sgro.   

 

 

11. APPLICANT: MICHAEL AND DIANE SMITH (VARIANCE #2598) 

 BLOCK: 109.01  LOT: 58    ZONE: R-3 

 LOCATION: 393 CEDAR SWAMP ROAD 

 

APPLICANT IS SEEKING A USE VARIANCE WITH WAIVER OF SITE PLAN FOR STORAGE OF LAWN CARE 

EQUIPMENT IN THE R-3 ZONE.  

 

Removed from this agenda. 

 

Motion to adjourn at 9:47 p.m. by DiGESU/Maher.  YES:  by affirmation. 

 

Respectfully submitted, 

 

 

 

 

Janice Kisty 

Zoning Board Recording Secretary 

 

 


